

**Michelle G. Fry, J.D., Ph.D.**

*State Director*

**Janet Brock Priest**

*Associate State Director  
Operations*

**Lori Manos**

*Associate State Director  
Policy*

**Constance Holloway**

*General Counsel*

**Harley T. Davis, Ph.D.**

*Chief Administrative Officer*

**Nancy Rumbaugh**

*Interim Chief Financial Officer*

**Greg Meetze**

*Chief Information Officer*



3440 Harden Street Extension  
Columbia, South Carolina 29203

**803/898-9600**

**Toll Free: 888/DSN-INFO**

**Home Page: [www.ddsn.sc.gov](http://www.ddsn.sc.gov)**

**COMMISSION**

**Stephanie M. Rawlinson**

*Chairman*

**Barry D. Malphrus**

*Vice Chairman*

**Robin B. Blackwood**

*Secretary*

**Gary Kocher, M.D.**

**Eddie L. Miller**

**David L. Thomas**

**Michelle Woodhead**

Reference Number: 367-11-DD

Title of Document: Telephone Policy

Date of Issue: January 22, 2003

Date of Last Revision: ~~June 16, 2022~~ ~~XXXX, 2023~~

**(REVISED)**

Effective Date: ~~June 16, 2022~~ ~~XXXX, 2023~~

Applicability: All DDSN Employees

**PURPOSE:**

The purpose of this policy is to document the Department of Disabilities and Special Needs (DDSN) procedures regarding the management and utilization of stationary telephones, ~~cellular telephones, and State telephone credit cards~~. This policy also follows the regulations established by the South Carolina Department of Administration for local and long-distance calls. Employees who violate the provisions of this policy will be subject to disciplinary action, in accordance with the department's progressive discipline policy and will be required to reimburse the department actual charges. This policy also documents the procedures to be followed by all Central Office employees relative to answering telephones and providing for incoming telephone call coverage during normal business hours within each division and section. The manner and efficiency in which incoming telephone calls are answered and processed is basic to providing quality service to both internal and external customers of each division and section within Central Office.

**SECTION I: STATIONARY TELEPHONES**

The South Carolina Department of Administration has issued statewide regulations establishing the proper use of South Carolina state government telephone systems. These guidelines permit South

Carolina state government employees to make reasonable use of state telephones while simultaneously guarding against abuse.

- A. The use of state government telephone services is limited to official business. It is a violation of S.C. Code Ann. § 16-13-400 (Supp. ~~2021~~2022), to abuse state telecommunication services. In addition to official business calls, the following non-business telephone calls may be made using state telephone services for 15 minutes or less. ~~including, if necessary, long distance services paid for by the state.~~
1. Calls to notify the family, physician, etc., when an employee is injured on the job.
  2. Calls to notify family of a schedule change when an employee (traveling on state government business) is delayed due to official business or a transportation delay.
  3. An employee, traveling in the United States for more than one (1) night on state government business, makes a brief call to his or her residence (averaging no more than one (1) call per day).
  4. An employee is required to work overtime without advance notice and calls within the local commuting area (the area from which the employee regularly commutes) to advise his or her family of the change in schedule or to make alternate transportation or childcare arrangements.
- B. Permissible Calls

The following calls are considered permissible calls under this policy and when necessary, employees may make such brief calls. However, an employee may be prohibited from placing such calls if, in the discretion of the supervisor, the employee's telephone usage is interfering with the employee's job performance or if the usage otherwise impacts upon the division's operations. If the listed calls generate or activate a long-distance ~~charge~~charge, the employee must charge the call to a personal credit card, ~~or~~ to the employee's home telephone number, ~~or place the call collect.~~ Under no circumstances shall an employee charge a personal, long distance call to a government or DDSN telephone number.

The following calls, ~~if of a short duration,~~ for 15 minutes or less, may be placed by an employee while on duty:

1. An employee makes brief daily calls to locations within the local commuting area to speak to a spouse or minor children (or those responsible for them, i.e., a school or day care center) to make certain of their well-being and/or safety.
2. The employee makes brief calls to locations within the local commuting area that can be reached only during normal working hours, such as a local government agency or a physician.

3. An employee makes brief calls to locations within the local commuting area to arrange for emergency repairs to his or her residence or automobile.
4. A call that reasonably could not be made at another time if it is of moderate duration and it does not adversely affect the performance of the state telephone system (e.g., unauthorized calls made in rapid succession to call-in contest on radio stations are considered detrimental to telephone system service levels).

C. Collect calls

Collect calls ~~should not be accepted under any circumstances.~~ may be accepted if the person calling identifies the call as an emergency or the call is from a DDSN employee, commission member, client, or client family member. While the use of collect calls is not favored, if an employee anticipates or expects to make a collect call to DDSN, the switchboard should be informed in advance. Employees are encouraged to secure a state telephone credit card prior to travel for use in making official business calls while in travel status. If a collect call is accepted, the name of the calling party and purpose of the call should be recorded and forwarded to the Facility Administrator, if at a DDSN Regional Center, or the Associate State Director Administration otherwise.

- D. Visitors may be given use of telephones as needed, but under no circumstances may a visitor charge a long-distance call to the state telephone system. ~~The DDSN employee responsible for the visitor may allow the visitor to use a state telephone to place a long distance call if the call will not disrupt official business and if the call is charged to a personal or business credit card, to the caller's home telephone number, or if the call is placed collect.~~

**SECTION II: CELLULAR TELEPHONES TELEPHONE COVERAGE**

Each division and individual in each section within Central Office is responsible for answering incoming telephone calls to their direct line during normal business hours (8:30 to 5:00), Monday through Friday. Officials and employees who have been assigned a cellular telephone by DDSN must adhere to the following guidelines.

- A. ~~To the extent possible, mobile communication device usage should be limited to official state government business. The employee will reimburse DDSN for any personal or unauthorized calls. Employees should use stationary phones when available and practical.~~
- B. ~~No wireless device will be issued to any employee without the approval of the Chief Information Officer. Justification for the mobile device must be submitted by the requesting employee's supervisor detailing the need and usage.~~
- C. ~~The Division of Information Technology will maintain a current inventory of all mobile communication devices. At a minimum the inventory shall include device description, employee who was issued the device and cellular vendor.~~

~~D. — The Division of Information technology will monitor the use of mobile communication devices. All unauthorized use will be reported to the Chief Information Officer and the employee's supervisor.~~

~~E. — All agency issued cell phones capable of storing data must have security activated that requires a password, passcode, or Personal Identification Number to unlock the phone and gain access to its data.~~

~~**SECTION III: — STATE TELEPHONE CREDIT CARDS**~~

~~Telephone calls charged to state telephone credit cards should be limited to official state government business. In addition to official business calls, DDSN considers the non-business calls listed in Section I-A & B to be permissible under this policy. The use of a state telephone credit card for purposes other than those established by this policy, in addition to progressive disciplinary action, may result in the revocation of the state telephone credit card.~~

---

Barry D. Malphrus  
Vice Chairman

---

Stephanie M. Rawlinson  
Chairman